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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In October of 1843 Bishop Frederick Baraga purchased an old ware-
house from Pierre Crebassa, a L'Anse fur trader, for the sum of forty
dollars. Dismantling the warehouse, Baraga had the logs transported from
the east shore of Keweenaw Bay to the west shore, directly across the
bay from the Methodist mission. Baraga had previously purchased approxi-
mately five hundred acres of land at Assinins for the mission, most of
which he later turned over to the Indians.

With this modest beginning, a structure of simple design, tygg}z;j@g}w
wide and seventy-two feet long, was erected. Although the interior of the

church was not yet finished, the first mass was celebrated on June 16, 1844

Both the worship area and the presbytery were located under the one roof.
Baraga moved into his quarters in June of 1844, and the building was com-
pleted. This church was destroyed in 1873, and a larger church wag built
by Father Gerhard Terhorst, which was also destroyed some years later.

The original school building, erected in 1860 under the guidance of
Bishop Baraga and Father Edward Jacker, still stands and has been used
recently as a warehouse. The large stone building to the west of the schog
house was used as both a convent and as orphanage quarters. The eastern
wing of the stone building was built by Father Terhorst in 1866, in pre-
paration for the arrival of the Sisters of St. Joseph. The extension to

the west was added in 1877 to make room for the first girl boarders.

Under the direction of Father Casper Douenberg, chaplain of the or-
phanage from 1916 to 1936, a larger building was constructed just south of
the old convent and orphanage in 1929. This building, costing $125,000,
was used as an orphanage until the purchase of the property by the Provincg
of St. Joseph of the Capuchin Order in the late 1950s.

In 1957 all of the orphanage buildings were rededicated as Sacred
Heart Friary and were used as the novitiate of the Capuchin Fathers in the
midwest until the late 1960s.

The property presently owned by the Capuchin Fathers includes the
entire mission area-and all remaining buildings and is presently in the
process of being sold. Just north of the mission area lies the Holy Name
Parish Cemetery, restlng place for native parishioners, priests and nuns.
Buried here, in land long held by the Chlppewa tribe, are many of the

~"“=Qed1cated chaplains of the Assinins mission and orphanage, including Fathe1
‘Gerhard Terhorst, Monsignor Melchior Faust, Father John Henn, and Father

Anﬁhony Vermare. The cemetery dates to the mid-1860s. Less than five

acres, the cemetery of Holy Name Parish was part of the original acreage

degded by Bishop Baraga to Chief Edward Assinins and his band following
he,/Civil War. Simple wooden crosses mark the graves of Indians and

missioners alike.
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' |STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

For three years Father Frederic Baraga, missionary at La Pointe,
western Lake Superior, received letters from Pierre Crebassa, a fur trader,
asking Baraga to visit L'Anse. Crebassa was conveying the request of Chief
Bineshi and other members of the Chippewa tribe who were not satisfied with
the Methodist mission there. The dissenting Indians had moved to the wester]
coast of Keweenaw Bay and had established their homes there.

In the spring of 1843 Baraga decided to begin his labors among the
L'Anse Indians. He remained at L'Anse for three weeks, christened thirty
'Indians, and preached. Crebassa had arranged part of his house for use as
a chapel and school.

Baraga returned to L'Anse again on October 24, 1843, determined to es-
tablish a permanent mission. He began to build, with the help of his Indian
converts and some individuals from La Pointe, a log church with a presbytery
and a school. Using cedar logs from an old warehouse sold to him by Crebass
Baraga's church went up, and the first mass was celebrated on June 16, 1844,
with the interior of the building yet unfinished. Baraga moved into the
rooms in the back of the church, and the building was dedicated to the Holy
Name of Jesus on September 29, 1844. 1In an attempt to settle the Indians
around the chuxch building, Baraga purchased 496.70 acres of land and erecte
fifteen log houses. The following summer, seven more were built.

While laboring at L'Anse, Father Baraga wrote his most noted Indian
works, the Chippewa grammar and the Chippewa dictionary. Using L'Anse as
his base, he also made numerous journeys, visiting in Michigan, Minnesota,
Wisconsin, and Ontario. In 1854, Baraga was made Vicar Apostolic of Upper
Michigan and visited L'Anse for the first time as bishop in September of
that year.

Following the outbreak of the Civil War, Baraga and the L'Anse Indians
became apprehensive about rumours supporting the consolidation of Indian
tribes on reservations. To prevent this, Baraga conveyed to Chief Edward
Assinins and his band all the mission land, including the cemetery adjacent

1to the mission school,. save the fourteen acres which were to include the

Catholic church, the church being the center of the fourteen-acre square.

Father Edward Jacker was sent to L'Anse in 1855 where he labored until
1861, replaced by Father Gerhard Terhorst. Father Terhorst used the old

.

church and other facilities, including the small school built in 1860.

(continued)
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8.1 Significance (continued)

Terhorst arranged for the Sisters of St. Joseph to operate the school. Three
sisters traveled by canoe from Sault Ste. Marie to L'Anse with Father Jacker
and Father Terhorst. The Sisters taught the Indian children of Assinins until
1906 when the Sisters of St. Agnes of Fond du Lac, Wisconsin, took charge of
the orphanage and school. Several of the Sisters of St. Joseph were buried
in the mission cemetery bordering the school grounds.

Under Father Terhorst's guidance the school was enlarged, and an orphan
asylum for boys was established. By the time of his death in 1901, he had
been instrumental in erecting several houses of worship in the Keweenaw Bay
area and had labored diligently to improve the school begun by Bishop Baraga.
Father Terhorst was also buried in the mission cemetery, laid to rest among
the people with whom he had worked for forty years. More priests to the
Assinins mission were buried in years later near the dedicated Terhorst. The
new orphanage building was erected in 1929, south of the old orphange building
‘and the cemetery, to accomodate further children at the Assinins mission.

The orphanage and school were in operation until 1956, when they were
closed due to diocesan reorganization and centralization in Marquette. The
orphanage buildings were rededicated on March 26, 1957, as Sacred Heart Friary
and were used by the Capuchin Fathers until the late 1960s. In December of
1971 the Midwest Capuchin Province of St. Joseph, following attempts to sell
the Assinins property, decided to transfer the buildings and land to the
Keweenaw Bay Indian Community. Father Rupert Dorn, Provincial of the Midwest
Capuchins, expressed the desire of the Province to return the buildings to
the Indians for whom the original mission had been built, as a conscious
attempt to practice social justice. The Indian community at Assinins, who
settled there with Baraga's assistance during the nineteenth century, will
utilize the buildings at the former friary as headquarters for the Tribal
Council, for a cultural enrichment program, and an alcoholic rehabilitation
center. Thus the mission area will once again become the focal point for
Indian life and activity on the Keweenaw Bay.

The L'Anse area, since the 1660s, had been an important base for the
Ottawa and Chippewa tribes and for fur traders and explorers in the region.
Baraga's labors here drew praise from many parts of the world, especially
from Vienna, Rome, and Paris. His success at L'Anse was well noted by his
fellow priests and by the pope. From the mission at L'Anse, Baraga rose to
the position of first Bishop of the Upper Michigan, earning an important
place in both the secular and religious histories of the Lake Superior region

2. Owner of Property (contnd.)

The principal owners of Assinins are currently the Keweenaw Bay Indian
Community and the Diocese of Marquette.
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CODE
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PHOTO CREDIT: Bmce Deter

DATE OF PHOTO: 1969

NEGATIVE FILED AT:

Bernard J. Lambert, L'Anse. Michigan

View is facing west, at the eastern entrance to
the mission grounds, and includes viEw of friavy,
stone structure dating from 1860s anﬁ stone convent

and nrnhnnngn built hy Eather - Terhorst
o
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View is of parish cemetery, facing south toward
the mission grounds.




by NS
€, .
L ;h A% rk’? Y




NPS Nmber*___iﬁ%_ﬁz_(ﬁ&___—

ritles . (Lodsagned)

RS __../:__ T Ny T— __:__f_{"ﬂ_._—._ R —_——— .__.Q__—-_——-— . s £ e e e — — — — - o
- UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR ST ANE
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Michigan
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES o
Baraga
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY

INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph) e TR —

COMMON:

ASSTILS

AND/OR HISTORIC:

Assinins
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IPHOTO CREDIT: Don Chaput

DATE OF
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DESCRIBE VIEW, DIRECTION, ETC.

Michigan Historical Commission, 3405 N. Logan, Lansing, Mich.

View is of eastern end of the original convent and
orphanage building which faces the Keweenaw Bay and US. 41.
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